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Mayoral Minutes 

(Item MM10/24) Council Response to Croydon TOD - Extension to the 
public consultation period and extraordinary Council meeting on 29 
January 2025  

File No: 24/50664 
 
Mayoral Minute by Cr John Faker (Mayor) 
 

Summary 
 
Community consultation is currently underway on the draft Alternate TOD Masterplan that 
Council's planning consultants have assisted in drafting in response to the State Government 
Croydon Transport Oriented Development initiative, with a mandated deadline of 31 January 2025 
for completion. 
 
While Council has repeatedly requested a further extension of time from the NSW Minister for 
Planning and Public Spaces and the NSW Department of Planning, Housing, and Infrastructure, 
this Mayoral Minute seeks to extend the public consultation period as long as practicable and 
proposes holding a dedicated extraordinary Council meeting on 29 January 2025 to allow for a 
comprehensive review of community feedback and the preparation of suitable options for 
consideration. 
 
Background 
 
In December 2023, the NSW Government announced its Transport-Oriented Development (TOD) 
program.  
 
Following a Council campaign requesting an extension of time to allow the development of a 
localised masterplan more sympathetic to Croydon’s historical character, the implementation of the 
TOD program was deferred until January 2025. 
 
Consultation on the alternate Masterplan commenced in October 2024. While the State 
Government holds ultimate authority over the approval, implementation, of the TOD program or 
any Council alternative, Council has taken a proactive stance.  
 
Rather than passively accepting the State’s proposed provisions, we are actively engaging with the 
community to ensure the communities voices are heard and feedback is incorporated into the 
process. 
 
The final outcome must address the requirement for additional housing set by the NSW 
Government.  
 
It is understood that the target for the Burwood component of the Croydon TOD is approximately 
3,500 dwellings. This appears to be far greater than the yield potentially achieved via the original 
TOD policy based on Council staff estimates, which was approximately 1,500. 
 
It is also disturbing to hear representations that may indicate that the TOD target for the Inner West 
portion of Croydon might be far lower than the Burwood one by approximately 1,000 dwellings.  
 
To date these dwelling targets have not been published or made publicly available, however I have 
heard through political and community representation that the Department of Planning considers 
them as non-negotiable. 
 
 I believe these critical aspects of the TOD program must be clarified and made publicly available. 
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We are deeply grateful for the time and effort the community has invested in this process so far, 
particularly given the challenges of the limited timeframe. Rest assured, Burwood Council is 
listening. Our dedicated staff are carefully reviewing all submissions and feedback received to 
date. 
 
Community input is invaluable, and Council remains committed to exploring all viable options that 
balance the need to accommodate population growth while preserving Croydon’s unique character. 
 
The final outcome may take several forms including: endorsing the TOD program as proposed by 
the NSW Government, adopting the alternative Draft Croydon Masterplan currently on exhibition as 
a response to the TOD program, or developing a refined proposal that integrates community 
feedback and responds to local priorities. 
 
I have formally requested a three-month extension beyond January 2025 from the NSW Minister 
for Planning and Public Spaces and the NSW Department of Planning, Housing, and Infrastructure. 
This additional time would allow for the finalisation of documentation required for the gazettal of the 
Croydon Masterplan and provide more opportunities for community engagement. 
 
Nevertheless, should the request for a further extension of time not be granted, I propose 
extending the current public consultation period to 22 December 2024 to ensure the community 
has more time to provide feedback and prepare detailed submissions. 
 
Lastly, I propose that a dedicated extraordinary Council meeting be scheduled for 29 January 
2025, to facilitate community participation at open forum and to allow our Council staff and 
consultants more time to develop a series of viable options for consideration. 
 
I therefore move that: 
 

1. The Mayor write to the Minister and the NSW Department of Planning, Housing, and 
Infrastructure reiterating Council’s objection to the excessive target of 3,500 imposed on our 
community and requesting that all targets relating to the Croydon TOD for both Burwood 
and Inner West sides be released and made public 

 
2. The Mayor again write to the Minister and the NSW Department of Planning, Housing, 

and Infrastructure seeking an extension of at least 3 months to facilitate further 
consultation and options analysis 

 
3. The Mayor and General Manager write again to the Mayor and General Manager of Inner 

West Council seeking advice on Inner West Council’s plans for Croydon TOD so as to 
facilitate a coordinated approach to the precinct 

 
4. That the exhibition period for the draft Croydon Housing Investigation Area Masterplan be 

extended and submissions be received until midnight on 22 December 2024. 
 

5. That Council staff and Council’s planning consultants review the Masterplan in light of 
submissions received and develop a series of viable options for consideration by Council. 
 

6. That based on feedback from residents, the General Manager, staff and Council’s planning 
consultants investigate a policy position for masterplans whereby zoning delineations match 
existing street/road boundaries as opposed to private property boundaries, as well as 
building height planes 

 
7. That, should the request for a further extension of time not be granted, Council hold an 

extraordinary Council meeting on 29 January 2025 to consider a final report detailing 
community feedback and to finalise Council’s submission regarding the TOD program with 
the aim of providing this submission to the NSW Minister for Planning and Public Spaces 
and the NSW Department of Planning, Housing, and Infrastructure by the 31 January 2025 
deadline. 
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8. That a Mayoral letter be sent to affected residents in the investigation area to inform them of 

the extended consultation period and of the extraordinary Council meeting. 
 
 
 

Attachments 

1⇩   Letter to Minister requesting 3-month extension to TOD implementation November 2024  
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The Hon. Paul Scully MP 
Minister for Planning and Public Spaces 
By email: wollongong@parliament.nsw.gov.au 

Our Ref.:  24/47930 
8 November 2024 

 
 

Dear Minister, 
  

REQUEST FOR THREE MONTH DEFERRAL TO APRIL 2025 FOR THE CROYDON TOD 
 
Burwood Council remains a committed advocate for responsible growth that respects the unique 
character of areas like Croydon. In alignment with the NSW Government’s Transit-Oriented 
Development (TOD) Program, Council staff have worked diligently to prepare a Masterplan that 
supports increased housing capacity around Croydon and Burwood train stations while prioritising 
community needs and sustainable development. 
 

To ensure successful implementation and meaningful community engagement, we are requesting a 
three-month deferral, a decision formally endorsed at the 22 October 2024 Council meeting.  
 
This additional time is essential for:  

 Guaranteeing technical and legal accuracy in the Masterplan and LEP provisions  

 Thorough infrastructure planning to meet future demands  

 Allowing for in-depth community consultation that addresses public concerns and feedback 
 
Recognising the urgency of the TOD Program, we believe that extending our timeline to April 2025 
would align with similar TOD precincts, including those in North Wollongong, St Mary’s Metro, and 
Cockle Creek. This additional time will help support the finalisation of documentation needed to 
gazette the Masterplan while allowing for more comprehensive community input. 
 
The draft Masterplan is currently on exhibition until 20 November 2024 and is available at 
https://participate.burwood.nsw.gov.au/croydon-housing-investigation-area. 
 

If you have any questions or need further clarification, please don’t hesitate to contact Council’s 
Director City Strategy Ryan Cole at ryan.cole@burwood.nsw.gov.au or Council’s Manager City 
Planning, Sumathi Navaratnam at sumathi.navaratnam@burwood.nsw.gov.au. 
 
I look forward to your favourable consideration of this request. 
 

Yours sincerely 

Cr John Faker  

MAYOR OF BURWOOD 
 

Cc: Tom Loomes 
Executive Director Strategic Planning & Policy 
Department of Planning, Housing and Infrastructure 

By email: stakeholder.engagement@planning.nsw.gov.au 
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